## PENNINGTON, MOORE, WILKINSON, BELL & DUNBAR, P.A. ATTORNEYS AT LAW

SAMUEL P. BELL, III DOUGLAS S. BELL FREDERICK L. BUSACK KAREN M. CAMECHIS KEVIN X. CROWLEY MARK K. DELEGAL MARC W. DUNBAR PETER M. DUNBAR MARTHA J. EDENFIELD CYNTHIA SIMMONS FLETCHER ROGELIO J. FONTELA JAN J. GORRIE

ROBERT H. HOSAY WILLIAM H. HUGHES A. KENNETH LEVINE JOHN J. MATTHEWS EDGAR M. MOORE E. MURRAY MOORE, JR. BRIAN A. NEWMAN JULIUS F. PARKER, III JOHN C. PELHAM CARL R. PENNINGTON, JR., P.A. C. FOWIN RUDE, JR. GARY A. SHIPMAN

CYNTHIA S. TUNNICLIFF WILLIAM E. WHITNEY BEN H. WILKINSON CATHI C. WILKINSON

OF COUNSEL
ROBERT CINTRON, JR.
R. STUART HUFF, P.A.
Coral Gables, Florids
CHRISTOPHER W. KANAGA\*
(Admitted in Massachusetts & Colorado Only)
BARBARA J. STAROS

via Hand Delivery

SPECIAL CONSULTANT

Inot a member of the Rorida Ber

TALLAHASSEE OFFICE: 215 SOUTH MONROE STREET 2ND FLOOR TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 (850) 222-3533 FAX (850) 222-2126

TAMPA OFFICE: 7650 COURTNEY CAMPBELL CAUSEWAY, SUITE 220 TAMPA, FLORIDA 33607 FAX (813) 639-1488

EMAIL: email@penningtonlawfirm.com

REPLY TO: P.O. BOX 10096 TALLAHASSEE, FL 32302-2096

February 10, 2000

Ms. Blanco Bayo, Director Division of Records and Reporting Florida Public Service Commission Betty Easley Conference Center 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Re: Dockets 981834-TP and 960786-TL

Comments to BellSouth's LNP Service Quality Measurements

Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed for filing please find Time Warner Telecom of Florida, L.P.'s comments to BellSouth's LNP Service Quality Measurements dated August 31, 1999, and five proposed LNP Measurements. for the above-referenced dockets. You will also find a copy of this letter enclosed. Please date-stamp this copy to indicate that the original was filed and return a copy to me.

Generally, the comments may be summarized as follows:

- 1. Generally, BST's proposed LNP metric do not contain a sufficient level of disaggregation to provide enough detail to make a determination whether disparate treatment exists between product types, geography, and dispatch vs. non-dispatch orders;
- 2. BST's proposed LNP metrics also do not take into account processing of Non-mechanized orders, such as those submitted by TWTC, in the overall order processing and order fullfilment mix;
- 3. BST's proposed LNP metrics are devoid of performance standards. For example, only 2 out of the 8 LNP metrics suggested by BST include a reference to a benchmark level of performance. TWTC presumes that appropriate discussion around benchmarks will take place at a future time; DOCUMENT NUMBER - DATE

RECEIVED & FILED

01822 FEB 108

FFSC-RECORDS/REPORTING



Ms. Blanco Bayo, Director February 10, 2000 Page 2

4. While BST is taking steps to develop and incorporate LNP related metrics into it's regional OSS plan, the metrics as currently proposed by BST fall short of meeting CLEC needs such as TWTC's. For instance, TWTC is proposing several new LNP metrics that address specific concerns by CLEC's 1) LNP due dates met within industry guidelines, 2) Customer accounts restructured prior to LNP due date, 3) Pre-mature LNP disconnects, 4) Timeliness of setting 10 digit trigger, and 5) LNP out of service greater than 60 minutes.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me. Thank you for your assistance in processing this filing.

Respectfully,

PENNINGTON, MOORE, WILKINSON, BELL & DUNBAR, P.A.

Karen M. Camechis

\kmc Enclosure

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

CATEGORY	FUNCTION*	PAGE #
Ordering	1. Percent Flow-through Service Requests (Summary)	2
•	2. Percent Flow-through Service Requests (Detail)	4
	3. Percent Rejected Service Requests	6
	4. Average Reject Interval & Reject Interval Distribution	7
	5. Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness	9
Provisioning	6. Percent Missed Installation Appointments	10
	7. Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval &	11
	Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution	
	8. Total Service Order Cycle Time	12

<sup>\*</sup> These reports are subject to change due to regulatory requirements or to correct errors and etc.

This is a draft of the documentation for Local Number Portability measurements. It is a work in progress and is being revised for incorporation into an update of the Service Quality Measurement documentation.

### **ORDERING**

### Report/Measurement:

Percent LNP Flow Through Service Requests (Summary)

### **Definition:**

The percentage of Local Service Requests (LSR) submitted electronically via the CLEC mechanized ordering process that flow through to SOCS without manual intervention

### **Exclusions:**

- Fatal Rejects
- Auto Clarification
- Manual Fallout
- CLEC Caused System Fallout
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

#### Business Rules:

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs which are submitted through one of two gateway interfaces (TAG and EDI), and flow through to SOCS without manual intervention. Flow through does not include LSRs which are submitted manually (e.g., fax, courier), contain fatal errors, are auto clarified back to the CLEC, are not designed to flow through, i.e., Manual Fallout, or contain a CLEC caused error.

#### **Definitions:**

<u>Fatal Rejects</u>: Errors that prevent an LSR submitted by the CLEC from being processed further. When an LSR is submitted by a CLEC, the LNP Gateway will perform edit checks to ensure the data received is correctly formatted and complete. For example, if the PON field contains an invalid character, the LNP Gateway will reject the LSR and the CLEC will receive a Fatal Reject.

<u>Auto-Clarification</u>: Errors that occur due to invalid data within the LSR. LAUTO will perform data validity checks to ensure the data within the LSR is correct and valid. For example, if the LNP is not available for the NPA NXX requested, then the LSR will be returned back to the CLEC as a clarification.

Manual Fallout: Planned fallout that occurs by design. Certain LSRs are designed to fallout of the Mechanized Order Process due to their complexity. These LSRs are manually processed by the LCSC. When a CLEC submits an LSR, LAUTO will determine if the LSR should be forwarded to LCSC for manual handling. The categories for Planned Manual Fallout include, but are not limited to:

- Complex services
- 2. Expedites (requested by the CLEC)
- 2.-3. Listing requested in foreign or secondary directory
- 3.-4. Loop account exists in CRIS
- 5. Not all DID numbers are being ported out or disconnected
- 6. Class of service invalid in certain states with some types of service
- 2.7. Not all numbers on the CSR are being ported out partial migration
- 3.8. Multi-line hunt by terminal numbers on some lines
- 9. Pending order review required
- 10. More than 25 business lines
- 2.11. Certain types of directory listings
- 3.-12. Project managed orders
- 4-13. CSR inaccuracies such as invalid or missing CSR data in CRIS

<u>Total System Fallout</u>: Errors that require manual review by the LCSC to determine if the error is caused by the CLEC, or if it is due to BST system functionality. If it is determined the error is caused by the CLEC, the LSR will be sent back to the CLEC as clarification. If it is determined the error is BST caused, the LCSC representative will correct the error, and the LSR will continue to be processed.

DRAFT Page 2 of 18181 Version 08/31/99

## ORDERING - (Percent LNP Flow Through Service Requests (Summary) - Continued)

Calculation:			
Percent Flow Through = (The total number of LSRs that flow through LAUTO to the BST OSS) / [(the number of LSRs passed from LNP Gateway to LAUTO) – $\Sigma$ [(the number of LSRs that fall out for manual processing) + (the number of LSRs that are automatically returned to the CLEC for clarification) + (the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs)]] X 100			
Report Structure:			
CLEC Aggregate			
CLEC Specific	İ		
> CLEC Aggregate			
> Region			
Level of Disaggregation;  Product			
• Product Aggregate			
Nggregate  > LNP Only			
> LNP w/loop			
> 1- 30 Telephone Numbers	j		
Greater than 30 Telephone Numbers			
> Dispatch			
Non-dispatch	,		
Geographic			
State			
Region			
Data Retained Relating to CLEC Experience	Data Retained Relating to BST Experience		
Report month	Report month		
Total number of LSRs received, by interface,	Total number of errors by type:		
by CLEC:	➤ BST system error		
> TAG			
> EDI			
Total number of errors by type, by CLEC:			
> Fatal rejects			
Total fallout for manual processing			
> Auto clarification			
> CLEC caused system fallout			
Retail Analog/Benchmark:			
CLEC Flow Through/benchmark comparison			

Revision Date: 12/28/99 (tm)

### **ORDERING**

### Report/Measurement:

Percent LNP Flow Through Service Requests (Detail)

### **Definition:**

A detailed list by CLEC of the percentage of Local Service Requests (LSR) submitted electronically via the CLEC mechanized ordering process that flow through to SOCS without manual intervention.

#### **Exclusions:**

- Fatal Rejects
- Auto Clarification
- Manual Fallout
- CLEC Caused System Fallout
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

### **Business Rules:**

The CLEC mechanized ordering process includes all LSRs which are submitted through one of two gateway interfaces (TAG and EDI), and flow through to SOCS without manual intervention. Flow through does not include LSRs which are submitted manually (e.g., fax, courier), contain fatal errors, are auto clarified back to the CLEC, are not designed to flow through, i.e., Manual Fallout, or contain a CLEC caused error.

### **Definitions:**

Fatal Rejects: Errors that prevent an LSR submitted by the CLEC from being processed further. When an LSR is submitted by a CLEC, the LNP Gateway will perform edit checks to ensure that the data received is correctly formatted and complete. For example, if the PON field contains an invalid character, the LNP Gateway will reject the LSR and the CLEC will receive a Fatal Reject.

Auto-Clarification: Errors that occur due to invalid data within the LSR. LAUTO will perform data validity checks to ensure the data within the LSR is correct and valid. For example, if the LNP is not available for the NPA NXX requested, then the LSR will be returned back to the CLEC as a clarification.

Manual Fallout: Planned fallout that occurs by design. Certain LSRs are designed to fallout of the Mechanized Order Process due to their complexity. These LSRs are manually processed by the LCSC. When a CLEC submits an LSR, LAUTO will determine if the LSR should be forwarded to LCSC for manual handling. The categories for Planned Manual Fallout include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Complex services
- 2. Expedites (requested by the CLEC)
- 2.3. Listing requested in foreign or secondary directory
- 3.-4. Loop account exists in CRIS
- 5. Not all DID numbers are being ported out or disconnected
- 6. Class of service invalid in certain states with some types of service
- 2. 7. Not all numbers on the CSR are being ported out partial migration
- 3.-8. Multi-line hunt by terminal numbers on some lines
- 9. Pending order review required
- 10. More than 25 business lines
- 2.-11. Certain types of directory listings
- 3:-12. Project managed orders
- 4-13. CSR inaccuracies such as invalid or missing CSR data in CRIS

Total System Fallout: Errors that require manual review by the LCSC to determine if the error is caused by the CLEC, or if it is due to BST system functionality. If it is determined the error is caused by the CLEC, the LSR will be sent back to the CLEC as clarification. If it is determined the error is BST caused, the LCSC representative will correct the error, and the LSR will continue to be processed.

### ORDERING - (Percent LNP Flow Through Service Requests (Detail) - Continued)

### Calculation:

Percent Flow Through =(The total number of LSRs that flow through LAUTO to the BST OSS) / [(the number of LSRs passed from LNP Gateway to LAUTO) –  $\Sigma$ [(the number of LSRs that fall out for manual processing + the number of LSRs that are returned to the CLEC for clarification + the number of LSRs that contain errors made by CLECs)]] X 100

### Report Structure:

- CLEC Specific Provides the flow through percentage for each CLEC (by alias designation to
  protect CLEC-specific proprietary data) submitting LSRs through the CLEC mechanized ordering
  process. The report provides the following:
  - > CLEC (by alias designation)
  - > Number of fatal rejects
  - > Mechanized interface used
  - > Total mechanized LSRs
  - > Total manual fallout
  - > Total number of auto clarifications returned to CLEC
  - > Total number of validated LSRs
  - > Total number of BST caused failout
  - > Total number of CLEC caused fallout
  - > Total number of LSRs which had Service Orders Issued
  - > Base flow through calculation
  - > CLEC error excluded flow through calculation

### Level of Disaggregation:

#### Product

- > LNP Only
- LNP w/loop
- > 1-30 Telephone Numbers
- Greater than 30 Telephone Numbers
- ➤ <u>Dispatch</u>
- Non-dispatch

### **□Product**

• Geographic

State

Region

□ Aggregate

Data Retained Relating to CLEC Experience	Data Retained Relating to BST Experience
Report month	Report month
Total number of LSRs received, by interface,	<ul> <li>Total number of errors by type:</li> </ul>
by CLEC:	➤ BST system error
➤ TAG	
▶ EDI	
Total number of errors by type, by CLEC:	
➤ Fatal rejects	
Total fallout for manual processing	
Auto clarification	
CLEC caused system fallout	
Retail Analog/Benchmark:	

<b>CLEC Flow</b>	Through	ı/bencl	ımark	comparison

Revision Date: 12/28/99 (tm)

DRAFT Page 6 of <u>1818</u>1 Version 08/31/99

### ORDERING

### Report/Measurement:

Percent Rejected Service Requests

### Definition:

Percent Rejected Service Request is the percent of total Local Service Requests (LSRs) which are rejected due to error or omission. An LSR is considered valid when it is manually or electronically submitted by the CLEC and passes LNP Gateway, or other edit checks to insure the data received is correctly formatted and complete, i.e., fatal rejects are excluded.

### Exclusions:

- Service Requests canceled by the CLEC
- Fatal Rejects
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

### **Business Rules:**

An LSR is considered "rejected" when it is submitted manually or electronically but does not pass edit checks in the ordering systems (EDI, TAG, LNP Gateway, LAUTO) and is returned to the CLEC. without manual intervention.

Fully Mechanized: There are two types of "Rejects" in the Fully Mechanized category:

- A Fatal Reject occurs when a CLEC attempts to electronically submit an LSR (via EDI or TAG) but required fields are not populated correctly and the request is returned to the CLEC.
   Fatal rejects are reported in a separate column, and for informational purposes ONLY. They are not considered in the calculation of the percent of total LSRs rejected or the total number of rejected LSRs.
- An Auto Clarification is a valid LSR which is electronically submitted (via EDI or TAG), but is rejected from LAUTO because it does not pass further edit checks for order accuracy. Auto Clarifications are returned without manual intervention.

Partially Mechanized: A valid LSR which is electronically submitted (via EDI or TAG), but cannot be processed electronically due to a CLEC error and "falls out" for manual handling. It is then put into "clarification", and sent back to the CLEC.

Manually Handled: An LSR that is manually submitted by CLEC and manually handled by ILEC.

Total Mechanized: Combination of Fully Mechanized and Partially Mechanized rejects.

### Calculation

### Percent Rejected Service Requests:

[(Number of Service Requests Rejected in the Reporting Period) / (Number of Service Requests Received in the Reporting Period)] x 100

#### Report Structure:

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized, Total Mechanized
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Product Reporting Levels
  - > LNP
  - > UNE Loop with LNP
  - ➤ Dispatch
  - Non-Dispatch
  - Geographic Scope
    - > State, Region

### <u>ORDERING</u>

### Report/Measurement:

Reject Interval Distribution & Average Reject Interval

#### **Definition:**

Reject Interval is the average reject time from receipt of an LSR to the distribution of a Reject. An LSR is considered valid when it is electronically or manually submitted by the CLEC and passes LNP Gateway, or other edit checks to insure the data received is correctly formatted and complete, i.e., fatal rejects are excluded.

#### **Exclusions:**

- Service Requests canceled by CLEC
- Fatal Rejects
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

### **Business Rules:**

The Reject interval is determined for each rejected LSR processed during the reporting period. The Reject interval is the elapsed time from when BST receives LSR until that LSR is rejected back to the CLEC. Elapsed time for each LSR is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of rejected LSRs to produce the reject interval distribution.

An LSR is considered "rejected" when it is submitted electronically or manually but does not pass edit checks in the ordering systems (EDI, TAG, LNP Gateway, LAUTO) and is returned to the CLEC, without manual intervention.

Fully Mechanized: There are two types of "Rejects" in the Fully Mechanized category:

- A Fatal Reject occurs when a CLEC attempts to electronically submit an LSR but required fields
  are not populated correctly and the request is returned to the CLEC.
   Fatal rejects are reported in a separate column, and for informational purposes ONLY. They are
  not considered in the calculation of the percent of total LSRs rejected or the number of rejected
  LSRs.
- An Auto Clarification is a valid LSR which is electronically submitted (via EDI or TAG), but rejected from LAUTO because it does not pass further edit checks for order accuracy. Auto Clarifications are returned without manual intervention.

Partially Mechanized: A valid LSR which is electronically submitted (via EDI or TAG), but cannot be processed electronically due to a CLEC error and "falls out" for manual handling. It is then put into "clarification", and sent back to the CLEC.

Non-Mechanized: An LSR that is manually submitted by CLEC and manually handled by ILEC.

Total Mechanized: Combination of Fully Mechanized and Partially Mechanized rejects.

### Calculation:

### Average Reject Interval:

a [ (Date & Time of Service Request Rejection) - (Date & Time of Service Request Receipt)] / (Total Number of Service Requests Rejected in Reporting Period)

### **Reject Interval Distribution:**

 $[\Sigma \text{ (Service Requests Rejected in "X" minutes/hours)} / \text{(Total Number of Service Requests Rejected in Reporting Period)}] X 100$ 

### Report Structure:

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-Mechanized, Total Mechanized
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Reported in intervals = 0 4 minutes, 4 8 minutes, 8 12 minutes, 12 60 minutes, 0 1 hours, 1
   8 hours, 8 24 hours, >24 hours
  - Product Reporting Levels
    - > LNP
    - ► UNE Loop with LNP
    - 1 − 30 Telephone Numbers
    - Greater than 30 Telephone Numbers
    - Dispatch
    - Non-Dispatch
- Geographic Scope
  - > State, Region
- Average Interval in Days

### **ORDERING**

### Report/Measurement:

Firm Order Confirmation Timeliness Interval Distribution & Firm Order Confirmation Average Interval

#### Definition:

Interval for Return of a Firm Order Confirmation (FOC Interval) is the average response time from receipt of a valid LSR to distribution of a firm order confirmation.

#### **Exclusions:**

- Rejected LSRs (Clarifications or Fatal Rejects)
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

### **Business Rules:**

The Firm Order Confirmation interval is determined for each FOC'd LSR processed during the reporting period. The Firm Order Confirmation interval is the elapsed time from when BST receives an LSR until that LSR is confirmed back to the CLEC. Elapsed time for each LSR is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of orders completed to produce the Firm Order Confirmation timeliness interval distribution.

- Mechanized The elapsed time from receipt of a valid LSR until the LSR is processed and appropriate service orders are generated in SOCS without manual intervention.
- Partially Mechanized The elapsed time from receipt of an electronically submitted LSR which falls
  out for manual handling by the LCSC personnel until appropriate service orders are issued by a BST
  service representative via Direct Order Entry (DOE) or Service Order Negotiation Generation System
  (SONGS).
  - > Non-Mechanized: An LSR that is manually submitted by CLEC and manually handled by ILEC.
- Total Mechanized Combination of Fully Mechanized and Partially Mechanized FOCs.

### Calculation:

### Average FOC Interval:

ă [ (Date & Time of Firm Order Confirmation) - (Date & Time of Service Request Receipt)] / (Total number of Service Requests Confirmed in the Reporting Period)

### **FOC Interval Distribution:**

 $\Sigma$ [ (Service Requests Confirmed in "X" minutes/hours in the Reporting Period) / (Total Service Requests Confirmed in the Reporting Period)] X 100

### Report Structure:

- Fully Mechanized, Partially Mechanized, Non-mechanized, Total Mechanized
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Reported in intervals = 0 15 minutes, 15 30 minutes, 30 45 minutes, 45 60 minutes, 90 120 minutes, 120 240 minutes, 4 8 hours, 8 12 hours, 12 16 hours, 16 20 hours, 20 24 hours, 24 48 hours, >48 hours
- Product Reporting Levels
  - ➤ LNP
  - ➤ WINE Loop with LNP
  - ➤ 1-30 TN's
  - Greater than 30 TN's
  - Dispatch
  - Non-dispatch
- Geographic Scope
  - State, Region

### **PROVISIONING**

### Report/Measurement:

Percent Missed Installation Appointments

### **Definition:**

Percent Missed Installation Appointments monitors the reliability of BST commitments with respect to committed due dates to assure that CLECs can reliably quote expected due dates to their retail customer as compared to BST.

### **Exclusions:**

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.

### **Business Rules:**

Percent Missed Installation Appointments (PMI) is the percentage of total orders processed for which BST is unable to complete the service orders on the committed due dates. Missed Appointments caused by end-user reasons will be included and reported in a separate category. A business day is any time period within the same date frame, which means there cannot be a cutoff time for commitments as certain types of orders are requested to be worked after standard business hours. Also, during Daylight Savings Time, field technicians are scheduled until 9PM in some areas and the customer is offered a greater range of intervals from which to select.

### Calculation:

Percent Missed Installation Appointments:

[ ä (Number of Orders Not Completed by Committed Due Date in Reporting Period) / (Number of Orders Completed in Reporting Period)] X 100

### Report Structure:

- Mechanized (service orders generated by LSRs submitted via EDI or TAG)
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

### Non-Mechanized

Report explanation: Total Missed Appointments is the total % of orders missed either by BST or the CLEC end user. End User MA represents the percentage of orders missed by the CLEC end user. The difference between End User Missed Appointments and Total Missed Appointments is the result of BST caused misses.

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Product Reporting Levels
  - > LNP
  - ➤—UNE Loop Associated w/LNP
  - > 1-30 TN's
  - ➢ Greater than 30 TN's
  - Dispatch
  - Non-dispatch
- Geographic Scope
  - ➤ State, Region

### **PROVISIONING**

### Report/Measurement:

Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval & Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution

### Definition:

Disconnect Timeliness is defined as the interval between the time the LNP Gateway receives the 'Number Ported' message from NPAC (signifying the CLEC 'Activate') until the time that the Disconnect service order for an LSR is completed in SOCS. This interval effectively measures BST responsiveness by isolating it from impacts that are caused by CLEC related activities.

### **Exclusions:**

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable.
- "L" Appointment code orders (indicating the customer has requested a later than offered interval)

### **Business Rules:**

The Disconnect Timeliness interval is determined for the last Disconnect service order processed on an LSR during the reporting period. The Disconnect Timeliness interval is the elapsed time from when BST receives the last 'Number Ported' message for an LSR from NPAC (signifying the CLEC 'Activate') until the last Disconnect service order is completed in SOCS. Elapsed time for each order is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the total number of selected disconnect orders which have been completed.

### Calculation:

### **Average Disconnect Timeliness Interval:**

ä [ (Disconnect Service Order Completion Date & Time) - ('Number Ported' Message Received Date & Time) ] /  $\Sigma$  (Total Number of Disconnect Service Orders Completed in Reporting Period)

### **Disconnect Timeliness Interval Distribution:**

[ $\Sigma$  (Disconnect Service Orders Completed in "X" days) / (Total Disconnect Service Orders Completed in Reporting Period)] X 100

### Report Structure:

- Mechanized (service orders generated by LSRs submitted via EDI or TAG)
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate

### Non-Mechanized

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Reported in day intervals = 0,1,2,3,4, 5, >5 days
- Product Reporting Levels
  - **>** → LNP
  - ➤ 1-30 TN's
  - ➤ Greater than 30 TN's
- Geographic Scope
- > State, Region

Revision date:

DRAFT Page 12 of 18181 Version 08/31/99

### **PROVISIONING**

### Report/Measurement:

Total Service Order Cycle Time (TSOCT) Interval Distribution & Average Total Service Order Cycle Time

#### Definition:

Total Service Order Cycle Time measure the interval from receipt of a valid service order request to the completion of the final service order associated with that service request.

### **Exclusions:**

- Canceled Service Orders
- Order Activities of BST or the CLEC associated with internal or administrative use of local services (Record Orders, Test Orders, etc.) where identifiable
- "L" appointment coded orders (indicating the customer has requested a later than offered interval)
- "S" appointment coded orders (indicating subscriber missed reasons), except for "SP" codes (indicating subscriber prior due date requested.

### **Business Rules:**

The interval is determined for each service request processed during the reporting period. This measurement combines two reports: FOC (Firm Order Confirmation) with Average Order Completion Interval.

This interval starts with the receipt of a valid service request and stops when the technician or system completes all the related service orders for the LSR in SOCS. Elapsed time for each service request is accumulated for each reporting dimension. The accumulated time for each reporting dimension is then divided by the associated total number of service requests completed to produce the total service order cycle time.

### Calculation:

### Average Total Service Order Cycle Time:

ă [ (Service Order Completion Date & Time) - (Service Request Receipt Date & Time) ] /  $\Sigma$  (Total Number Service Requests Completed in Reporting Period)

### **Total Service Order Cycle Time Interval Distribution:**

[ $\Sigma$  (Total Number of Service Requests Completed in "X" minutes/hours) / (Total Number of Service Requests Received in Reporting Period)] X 100

### Report Structure:

- Mechanized (service orders generated by LSRs submitted via EDI or TAG)
- CLEC Specific
- CLEC Aggregate
- Non-Mechanized

### Level of Disaggregation:

- Reported in day intervals 0 5, 5 10, 10 15, 15 20, 20 25, 25 30, >30 days
- Product Reporting Levels
  - ➤ LNP
  - ➤ UNE Loop with LNP
  - > 1-30 TN's
  - ➤ Greater than 30 TN's
  - Dispatch
  - > Non-dispatch
- Geographic Scope
  - State, Region

## TWTC Proposed New LNP Measurement #1:

Percentage of LNP Only Due Dates within Industry Guidelines

### Definition:

Percentage of LNP Due date interval that meets the industry standard established by the North American Numbering Council (NANC).

### Exclusions:

- CLEC or Customer caused or requested delays.
- NPAC caused delays unless caused by ILEC.

### **Business Rules:**

Industry guidelines for due dates for LNP are as follows:

- For Offices in which NXXs are previously opened 3 Business Days.
- New NXX 5 Business days on LNP capable NXX.

The above-noted due dates are from the date of the FOC receipt.

### For partial LNP conversions that require restructuring of customer account:

- 1-30 TNs: Add one additional day to the FOC interval. The LNP due date intervals will continue to be three business days and five business days from the receipt of the FOC depending on whether the NXX has been previously opened or is new.
- >30 TNs, including entire NXX: The due dates are negotiated.

### Levels of Disaggregation:

NXXs previously opened and NXX new (1-30 TNs and greater than 30 TNs)

Calculation:	Report Structure:
(Count of LNP TNs implemented	Reported for CLEC and all CLECs.
within Industry guidelines + total	
number of LNP TNs) *100	

### Measurement Type:

### Benchmark

96.5%. The benchmark will be revised either up or down if industry guidelines are established that are different than the objective stated here.

DRAFT Page 14 of 18181 Version 08/31/99

TWTC Proposed New Measurement #2:			
Percentage of Customer Account Restructured Prior	to LNP Due Date		
Definition:			
Percentage of accounts restructured with			
TWTC proposed new measurement No. 1	, and/or negotiated due date for orders		
that contain more than 30 TNs.			
Exclusions:			
None			
Business Rules:			
See proposed new measurement No. 1			
Levels of Disaggregation:			
None			
Calculation:	Report Structure:		
(Number of LNP orders for which	Reported for CLEC and all CLECs.		
customer accounts were restructured			
prior to LNP due date) ÷ (total			
number of LNP orders that require			
customer accounts to be restructured)			
<u>*100</u>	,		
Measurement Type			
Benchmark:			
96.5%			

## TWTC Proposed New Measurement #3: Percentage Pre-mature Disconnects for LNP Orders Definition: Percentage of LNP cutovers where ILEC prematurely removes the translations, including the 10 digit trigger, prior to the scheduled conversion time. Exclusions: **Coordinated Conversions** Business Rules: The count of incidents, on a TN basis, where the translations are removed prior to the scheduled conversion. Count the number of cutovers that are prematurely disconnected (10 minutes before scheduled conversion time). Levels of Disaggregation: LNP only and LNP with Loop. Calculation: Report Structure: Reported by CLEC and all CLECs Count of premature disconnects ÷ total LNP conversions \* 100 disaggregated by LNP and LNP with UNE loop. Measurement Type:

Benchmark:

2% or Less premature disconnects starting 10 minutes before scheduled due time.

DRAFT Page 16 of <u>18181</u> Version 08/31/99

TWIC Proposed New Measurement Percentage of Time ILEC Applies the 10-digit Tris	
Definition:	
	it trigger, where technically feasible, for LNP to the due date.
Exclusions:	- Agency constitution
	MS 100s, DID in all offices and ISDN Data
Business Rules:	
Obtain number of LNP or LNP with loc applied on the day prior to due date, and Loop TNs where the 10-digit trigger wa	d the total number of LNP or LNP with
Levels of Disaggregation:	
LNP only, and LNP with Loop.	
Calculation:	Report Structure:
(Count of LNP TNs for which 10-digit trigger was applied 24 hours prior to due date ÷ total LNP TNs for which 10-digit triggers were applied) * 100.	Reported for CLEC and all CLECs.
Measurement Type:	
Benchmark: 96.5%	

## TWTC Proposed New Measurement #5; Percent Out of Service < 60 minutes Definition: The Number of LNP related conversions where the time required to facilitate the activation of the port in ILEC's network is less than 60, expressed as a percentage of total number of activations that took place. Exclusions: • CLEC-caused errors. NPAC-caused errors unless caused by ILEC. Large ports greater than 500 ports. **Business Rules:** The Start time is the Time that an "activate NPAC" broadcast is received in ILEC's LSMS. The End time is the Time the provisioning event is complete in ILEC's LSMS. Count the number of conversions that took place in less than 60 minutes. Levels of Disaggregation: None Report Structure: Calculation: (Number of activation events Reported for CLEC and all CLECs. provisioned in less than 60minutes) ÷ (total LNP provisioning events) \* 100. Measurement Type:

Benchmark: 96.5%

DRAFT Page 18 of 18181 Version 08/31/99

## CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE DOCKET 981834-TP

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served by U.S.

Mail on this 10th day of February, 2000, to the following parties of record:

ALLTEL Communications Services, Inc.

Bettye Willis One Allied Drive

Little Rock, AR 72203-2177

Phone: (501) 905-8330 Fax: (501) 905-6299

Represented by: Ausley Law Firm

AT&T Communications of the Southern

States, Inc.

Ms. Rhonda P. Merritt

101 North Monroe Street, Suite 700

Tallahassee, FL 32301-1549

Phone: (850) 425-6342

Fax: 425-6361

Ausley Law Firm

Jeffry Wahlen P.O. Box 391

Tallahassee, FL 32302

Phone: 850-224-9115

Fax: 222-7960

Represents: ALLTEL

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

Ms. Nancy H. Sims

150 South Monroe Street, Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32301-1556

Phone: (850) 224-7798

Fax: 222-8640

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Mia)

Nancy B. White

150 West Flagler St., Suite 1910

Miami, FL 33130

Phone: 305-347-5558

Fax: 305-577-4061

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Atl)

E. Earl Edenfield, Jr.

675 W. Peachtree St., #4300

Atlanta, GA 30375 Phone: 404-335-0763

Fax: 404-614-4054

BlueStar Networks, Inc.

Norton Cutler

401 Church Street, 24th Floor

Nashville, TN 37210 Phone: (615) 346-3848

Fax: (615) 346-3875

Represented by: McWhirter Law Firm

Blumenfeld & Cohen

Elise Kiely/Jeffrey Blumenfeld

1625 Massachusetts Ave. NW

Suite 300

Washington, DC 20036

Phone: 202-955-6300

Fax: 202-955-6460

Represented by: Cohen/Hopping

CompTel

Terry Monroe/Genevieve Morelli

1900 M Street, NW, Suite 800

Washington, DC 20036

Phone: 202-296-6650

Fax: 202-296-7585

Covad Communications Company

Christopher V. Goodpaster

9600 Great Hills Trail, Suite 150 W

Austin, TX 78759

Phone: (512) 502-1713

Fax: (419) 818-5568

EMail: cgoodpas@covad.com

Florida Cable Telecommunications

Assoc., Inc.

Michael A. Gross

310 N. Monroe St.

Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-681-1990

Fax: 681-9676

EMail: MGROSS@FCTA.com

Florida Competitive Carriers Assoc.

c/o McWhirter Law Firm

Vicki Kaufman

117 S. Gadsden St. Tallahassee, FL 32301

Phone: 850-222-2525

Fax: 222-5606

Represented by: McWhirter law firm

Florida Public Telecommunications Assoc.

Angela Green, General Counsel

125 S. Gadsden St., #200

Tallahassee, FL 32301-1525

Phone: 850-222-5050

Fax: 222-1355

GTE Florida Incorporated

Kimberly Caswell

P.O. Box 110, FLTC0007

Tampa, FL 33601-0110

Phone: (813) 483-2617

Fax: (813) 223-4888

GTE Florida Incorporated

Ms. Beverly Y. Menard

% Ms. Margo B. Hammar

106 East College Avenue, Suite 810

Tallahassee, FL 32301-7704

Phone: (813) 483-2526

Fax: (813) 223-4888

EMail: beverly.menard@telops.gte.com

Hopping Law Firm

Richard Melson/Gabriel Nieto

P.O. Box 6526

Tallahassee, FL 32314

Phone: 850-222-7500

Fax: 224-8551

Represents: MCI, Rhythms Links,

ITC^DeltaCom

Intermedia Communications, Inc.

Mr. Scott Sapperstein

3625 Queen Palm Drive

Tampa, FL 33619-1309

Phone: (813) 829-4093

Fax: (813) 829-4923

rax. (013) 029-4923

EMail: sasapperstein@intermedia.com

Represented by: Wiggins Law Firm

ITC^DeltaCom

Ms. Nanette Edwards

700 Boulevard South, Suite 101

Huntsville, AL 35802

Phone: (256) 650-3856

Fax: (256) 650-3936

Represented by: Hopping Law Firm

Kentucky Public Service Commission

Deborah Eversole, General Counsel

P. O. Box 615

Frankfort, KY 40602

Lockheed Martin IMS

Anita L. Fourcard

Communications Industry Services

1200 K Street, N.W.

Washington, DC 20005

Phone: 202-414-3724

Fax: 202-408-5922

MCI WorldCom

Ms. Donna C. McNulty

325 John Knox Road, Suite 105

Tallahassee, FL 32303-4131

Phone: 850-422-1254

Fax: 422-2586

Represented by: Messer Law Firm, Hopping

Law Firm

MCImetro Access Transmission Services LLC

Ms. Donna C. McNulty

325 John Knox Road, Suite 105

Tallahassee, FL 32303 Phone: (850) 422-1254

Fax: 422-2586

EMail: donna.mcnulty@wcom.com Represented by: Hopping law firm

McWhirter Law Firm

Joseph McGlothlin/Vicki Kaufman

117 S. Gadsden St. Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-222-2525

Fax: 222-5606

Represents: FCCA, BlueStar Networks

MediaOne Florida Telecommunications, Inc.

c/o Laura L. Gallagher Laura L. Gallagher, P.A. 101 E. College Ave., Suite 302

Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: (850) 224-2211

Fax: 561-6311

MGC Communications, Inc.

Marilyn H. Ash

3301 North Buffalo Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-310-8461 Fax: 702-310-5689

EMail: mash@mgcicorp.com

Rhythms Links Inc.

6933 South Revere Parkway, Suite 100

Englewood, CO 80112 Phone: (303) 476-4200

Represented by: Hopping Law Firm

Sprint Communications Company Limited

Partnership

Susan S.Masterton/Charles J. Rehwinkel

P.O. Box 2214 MC: FLTLHO0107

Tallahassee, FL 32316-2214

Phone: (850) 847-0244

Fax: 878-0777

EMail: susan.masterton@mail.sprint.com

Sprint-Florida, Incorporated

Mr. F. B. (Ben) Poag

P. O. Box 2214 (MC FLTLHO0107)

Tallahassee, FL 32316-2214 Phone: (850) 599-1027

Fax: (407) 814-5700

EMail: Ben.Poag@mail.sprint.com

Supra Telecommunications & Information

Systems, Inc.

Mark E. Buechele

2620 S.W. 27th Avenue

Miami, FL 33133

Phone: 305-531-5286

Fax: 305-476-4282

TCG South Florida

c/o Rutledge Law Firm

Kenneth Hoffman

P.O. Box 551

Tallahassee, FL 32302-0551

Phone: 850-681-6788

Fax: 681-6515

Telecommunications Resellers Assoc. Andrew Isar 3220 Uddenberg Lane, Suite 4 Gig Harbor, WA 98335

Phone: 253-851-6700 Fax: 253-851-6474

Time Warner Telecom 2301 Lucien Way, Suite 300 Maitland, FL 32751 Represented by: Pennington Law Firm

Time Warner Telecom Ms. Carolyn Marek Regulatory Affairs, Southeast Region 233 Bramerton Court Franklin, TN 37069 Phone: (615) 376-6404 Fax: (615) 376-6405

EMail: carolyn.marek@twtelecom.com Represented by: Pennington Law Firm

U.S. Department of Justice/Telecom Task Force Anu Seam Antitrust Division 1401 H Street N.W., Ste 8000 Washington, DC 20530 Phone: 202-514-9848

Fax: 202-514-6381

Wiggins Law Firm Charlie Pellegrini/Patrick Wiggins P.O. Drawer 1657

Tallahassee, FL 32302 Phone: 850-385-6007 Fax: 385-6008

Represents: Intermedia

KAREN M. CAMECHIS, ESQ.

### **CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE DOCKET 960786-TP**

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing has been served by U.S.

Mail on this 10th day of February, 2000, to the following parties of record:

Access Network Services, Inc.

Mr. Steven T. Brown

% Intermedia Communications Inc.

3625 Oueen Palm Drive Tampa, FL 33619-1309 Phone: (813) 829-2231

Fax: (813) 829-4923

EMail: stbrown@intermedia.com

American Communications Services, Inc.

James Falvey

131 National Business Parkway Annapolis Junction, MD 20701 Represented by: Messer Law Firm

American Network Exchange, Inc.

**Amy Gross** 

100 W. Lucerne Circle, #100

Orlando, FL 32801 Phone: 407-246-6488 Fax: 407-481-2560

AT&T Communications of the Southern

States, Inc.

Ms. Rhonda P. Merritt

101 North Monroe Street, Suite 700

Tallahassee, FL 32301-1549

Phone: (850) 425-6342

Fax: 425-6361

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.

Ms. Nancy H. Sims

150 South Monroe Street, Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32301-1556

Phone: (850) 224-7798

Fax: 222-8640

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. (Atl)

Nancy White

675 W. Peachtree St., #4300

Atlanta, GA 30375 Phone: 404-335-0710

Fax: 404-614-4054

CompTel

Terry Monroe/Genevieve Morelli 1900 M Street, NW, Suite 800

Washington, DC 20036

Continental Cablevision

Donald Crosby

7800 Belfort Parkway, #270 Jacksonville, FL 32256-6925

Phone: 904-731-8810 Fax: 904-281-0342

Cox Communications (VA)

Jill Butler

4585 Village Ave. Norfolk, VA 23502 Phone: 757-369-4524

Fax: 757-369-4500

Represented by: Landers Law Firm

CWA (OP)

Pat Warren

752 Blanding Blvd., #110 Orange Park, FL 32065-5789

Phone: 904-272-1101

CWA (Orl) Kenneth Ruth

1040 Woodcock Road, #200

Orlando, FL 32803 Phone: 407-894-9781 Fax: 407-898-9684

**Davel Communications Group** 

Vince Giammatteo 1429 Massaro Blvd. Tampa, FL 33619 Phone: 813-623-3545

Fax: 813-626-9610

DeltaCom, Inc. Nanette Edwards 700 Boulevard South # 101 Huntsville, AL 35802

**DES Long Distance** Linda Williams P. O. Box 1585

Destin, FL 32540-1585 Phone: (850) 837-0077 Fax: (850) 654-1794

Ervin Law Firm Everett Boyd P.O. Drawer 1170 Tallahassee, FL 32302 Phone: 850-224-9135

Fax: 222-9164

Represents: Sprint/Sprint-Metro

Executive Office of the Governor Office of Planning and Budget General Government Unit The Capitol, Rm. 1502 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0001

Federal Communications Commission Janice Miles 1919 M St., NW, #544 Washington, DC 20554

Florida Cable Telecommunications Assoc.,

Michael Gross/Charles Dudley

310 N. Monroe St. Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-681-1990

Fax: 681-9676

Florida Competitive Carriers Assoc.

c/o McWhirter Law Firm

Vicki Kaufman 117 S. Gadsden St. Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-222-2525

Fax: 222-5606

Florida Public Telecommunications Assoc.

Angela Green, General Counsel 125 S. Gadsden St., #200 Tallahassee, FL 32301-1525 Phone: 850-222-5050.

Fax: 222-1355

Hopping Law Firm Richard Melson P.O. Box 6526

Tallahassee, FL 32314 Phone: 850-222-7500

Fax: 224-8551

Represents: MCI, Rhythms Links,

ITC^DeltaCom

Intermedia Communications, Inc.

Mr. Scott Sapperstein 3625 Queen Palm Drive Tampa, FL 33619-1309 Phone: (813) 829-4093

Fax: (813) 829-4923

EMail: sasapperstein@intermedia.com Represented by: Wiggins Law Firm

ITC^DeltaCom

Ms. Nanette Edwards

700 Boulevard South, Suite 101

Huntsville, AL 35802 Phone: (256) 650-3856

Fax: (256) 650-3936

Represented by: Hopping Law Firm

IXC Communications Services, Inc. Director of Regulatory Affairs 1122 Capital of Texas Highway South Austin, TX 78746 Phone: (512) 340-2665 Fax: (512) 328-7902

Kentucky Public Service Commission Deborah Eversole, General Counsel P. O. Box 615 Frankfort, KY 40602

Knowles Law Firm John Marks, III 215 S. Monroe St., #130 Tallahassee, FL 32301 Phone: 850-222-3768

Fax: 561-0397

Represents: BellSouth

Landers Law Firm Scheffel Wright P.O. Box 271

Tallahassee, FL 32302 Phone: 850-681-0311

Fax: 224-5595

Represents: Cox Communications

LDDS Communications, Inc.

Brian Sulmonetti

1515 S. Federal Hwy., #400 Boca Raton, FL 33432-7404

Phone: 561-750-2940 Fax: 561-750-2629

Represented by: Messer Law Firm

MCI WorldCom Network Services, Inc.

Ms. Donna C. McNulty

325 John Knox Road, Suite 105

Tallahassee, FL 32303-4131

Phone: 850-422-1254

Fax: 422-2586

EMail: donna.mcnulty@wcom.com Represented by: Hopping Law Firm

Messer Law Firm

Floyd Self

P.O. Box 1876

Tallahassee, FL 32302

Phone: 850-222-0720

Fax: 224-4359

Represents: LDDS, ACSI

Metropolitan Fiber Systems of Florida, Inc.

Mr. Brian Sulmonetti

1515 South Federal Highway, Suite 400

Boca Raton, FL 33432-7404

Phone: (561) 750-2040

Fax: (561) 750-2629

EMail: brian.sulmonetti@wcom.com Represented by: Swidler & Berlin

MGC Communications, Inc.

Marilyn H. Ash

3301 North Buffalo Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-310-8461

Fax: 702-310-568

Office of Public Counsel c/o The Florida Legislature 111 W. Madison St., #812

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1400

Phone: 850-488-9330

Occ Inc.

Janet Cinelli

8829 Bond St.

Overland Park, KS 66214 Phone: 913-492-1230

Fax: 913-492-1684

Rhythms Links Inc.

6933 South Revere Parkway, Suite 100

Englewood, CO 80112 Phone: (303) 476-4200

Represented by: Hopping Law Firm

Rutledge Law Firm Kenneth Hoffman P.O. Box 551

Tallahassee, FL 32302 Phone: 850-681-6788

Fax: 681-6515 Represents: TCG

Senate Committee on Regulated Industries

John Guthrie

418 Senate Office Bldg. Tallahassee, FL 32399 Phone: 850-487-5957

Fax: 487-5868

South Carolina Public Service Commission Research Dept./Vivian Dowdy

P.O. Drawer 11649 Columbia, SC 29211

Sprint/Sprint-Metro Mr. Benjamin W. Fincher 3100 Cumberland Circle, #802

Atlanta, GA 30339 Phone: 404-649-5144 Fax: 404-649-5174

Represented by: Ervin Law Firm

Swidler & Berlin Richard Rindler 3000 K St. NW, #300 Washington, DC 20007-Phone: 202-424-7771 Fax: 202-424-7645

Represents: Metropolitan Fiber

TCG (Wash)
Paul Kouroupas

1133 21st St., NW, #400 Washington, DC 20036 Phone: 202-739-0030

Fax: 202-739-0044

Represented by: Rutledge Law Firm

Time Warner Communications (CO)

160 Inverness Dr. W. Englewood, CO 80112

Represented by: Pennington Law Firm

Time Warner Telecom Ms. Carolyn Marek

Regulatory Affairs, Southeast Region

233 Bramerton Court Franklin, TN 37069 Phone: (615) 376-6404 Fax: (615) 376-6405

EMail: carolyn.marek@twtelecom.com Represented by: Pennington Law Firm

Touch 1 Communications

Charlene Perry
P.O. Drawer 10751
Atmore, AL 36504-5751
Phone: 334-368-8600
Fax: 334-368-1314

TransAmerica Communications, Inc.

% Owest

4250 North Fairfax Drive, 12W002

Arlington, VA 22203 Phone: (703) 363-4321 Fax: (703) 363-4404

U.S. Department of Justice/Telecom Task

Force Anu Seam

Antitrust Division

1401 H Street N.W., Ste 8000

Washington, DC 20530 Phone: 202-514-9848

Fax: 202-514-6381

Utilities and Telecommunications (State House) Bill Tabor 410 House Office Bldg. Tallahassee, FL 32399

Wiggins Law Firm Charlie Pellegrini/Patrick Wiggins P.O. Drawer 1657 Tallahassee, FL 32302

Phone: 850-385-6007

Fax: 385-6008

Represents: Intermedia

KAREN M. CAMECHIS, ESQ.